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Dr, Renald E, Mawcello

Place of Interview: San Antonia, Texas Date; December 4, 1982

Dr, Marcello:

Mr, Bruce:
Dx, Marcello:

Mr, Bruce:

Dr, Marcello:

This is Ron Mavcelle intewviewing John W, Bruce for the
North Texas State Uniwersity Qmal tistory Cellection, The
intepview is taking place on December 4, 1982, in San
Antonte, Texas, I'm intemyiewing Mr, Bruce in order to get
his reminiscenges and experiences and impressions while he
was a membey of the 3lst Bomb Squadren and stationed at
Hickam Field during the Japanese attack there and at Pearl
Harboy and the other military Installations on December 7,
1941,

My, Bruce, te begin this lnterview, wery briefly give
me a biographical sketch of yourself, In other words, tell
me when you were bern, wheve you were born, your education~--
things of that natuve, Just be wery brief and general,

I was boxn on October 28, 1917, in Blopmington, Indiana.
Did you go to scheool in Bloomington?

Yes, I finished high school there and two years at Indiana
University. Then I went broke going ta school and didn't
haye a job, so 1 joined the sewyice in 1939,

You said you joined the seryice in 1939, Did you join the



Bruce:
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Marcello;
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Army or the Army Air Corps?

The Army Ailx Corps.,

You went directly into the Army Air Corps,

Right, They had seme kind of situation where, if you were a
high school graduate, you could go into the Army Air Corps

and get a chofce of assigmments, and they had owerseas
agsignments, Of coupse, T think they were only the Philippines,
Hawaid, and Panama, I'm not supe of that, Five of us from our
hometown all chese to stay together, and we went to Hawailil,

You indicated awhile agp that you went broke while you were at
Indiang University, and that played a part in your decision, Am
I to assume that the Depresston was stidll being felt with in that
particular section and with you personally at that time?

Yes, I'm not sure Blepmington, Indiana, has ever got ovex the
Depression (chuckle).

You know, econgmic reasons are given by a lot of the people of
your generation who went into the service as being the factor
that influenced their decisien,

Well, true, and, also, I was wanting to study the criminalogical
side of secielogy, and the more I studied, the move disitllusioned
L became with that, So that and the fact that I ran out of mopey
were the regsons that T decided to go ahead, Then we only had to
sign up far two years, It took me five years, nine months, and
one day to camplete that two yearss but that leoked good, and I

thought T could save some meney while T was in the sevvice and go



back to schoal,

Marcelle: Why did yoy decide to enter the Army Alr Corps as oppesed to
one of the other branches of Semvice?

Bruce: Well, aviation was coming inte its own, and 2t had the higher
requirements, which yeu didn't have teo have a high school
educatieon at the time to get inte the Navy or just the regular
Army, T guess the Marines were the samey they'd take anything,

Marcello: I alsp think #t's true, #s it not, that g lot eof people at
that time still had a great deal of fascination with airplanes
and things of that nature?

Brucej Oh, ves, they were a novelty, really a noyelty, I think T'd
had two atrplane wides up uyntil that time, one in a three-
engine forward and ene in a biplane, open ceckpit, Many people
had never flown, Ewerytime an alrplane came over, everyome would
vun, outside the house, It was just like a one train a day
through a town--everyone goes and watches it, Tt was the same way
with atrplanes,

Marcello: Where did you take your boot camp or your basic trainling, as they
call it in the Air Corps?

Bruce: At Hickam Field,

Marcello: Oh, so you went directly from Bloomington or wherever you left
from and went directly to Hickam Field?

Bruce; No, we were inducted at Fort Benjamin Happlson, which was an
Army base at Indianapolis, From there, we went to Fort Slecum,

which I don't think exists any longer, It was a little tsland
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Marcello:

off the shore of New Rochelle, New York, and you were on the
lsland there pulling details and anything you could do to kill
time, So when the transport came in, 3t docked down at the
Brooklyn Army Base, and then we'd go down there and lead on

and take off, Our treop tramsport happened te be the Chateau-
Thieryy, which was a World War I transport, and this was its
matden yoyage after heing de-commissioned after World War T,

So i was a pretty rough old baat,

How long did it tgke‘you te go from the Brooklyn Army Base to
Hickam Fleld? How long did that trip take?

I'm not suve on this, but T think it took fiye days to Panama, and
then we went directly from Panama to Hawaitil, T think that was
seventeen days, but, as T say, I'm not so suve, Some of the
ships. would go on up to San Franclsco and spend some time there,
Now what happened when the ship docked at Henelulu? Describe

the reception ypu received at that point, and then talk a little
about your going Intp Hickam Field itself,

Well, we just marched off like we were all Army then, They knew
you by name, and they'd call you by held sych-and~such as to where
you'd stayed in the ship, You came off, and you walked over or
marched over to an avea and wailted theve for busses, The busses
took you from down avound the Aloha Towex up to Hickam Field,
Everything our particular load did was done out at Hickam Field,
Describe what Wickam Field looked like fram a physical standpoint

at the time that you first enteved it there in 1939,
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Well, it was a big place, really, It amazed me at the time,

how large it was, It had wery few buildings, The permanent
barracks had been started but were no way near complete,

So we moved to "Tent City," and mest everyone lived in

tents, There wewpe a few quarters. for some of them, I guess,
sentor marrded noncoms and eofficers, You had a Headquarters
Butlding, of course, and like T eften say, the least used
building on the base, the chapel, was alweady built,

Theytll bupld &t when they need something else ewverytime (chuckle),
The hangars were built--~eight of them--plus the Hawaitan Ailr
Depot, What s the parking area today was our active runway
back then,

What kind of planes were kept there at Hickam Field during this
perlod?

In the bomber squadrons, all we had were B~18%'s, I think there
was one B=1Q or B-13, a Martin, but T don't know who it belonged
to, We had one DC-3, which later became famous as the C~47, T
think therve weve two A-12'%s,:an old attack ship, and if I'm not
mistaken, the Air Corps had only bought twenty or twenty—~five of
them, total, Tt was practically without armor, open cockpit, low-
wing, external struts on it, It vhistled coming through the atr,
It was goed for the pilots to get out because they could blow
steam off in it, But the bombers wepe all B~18, not sharp-nosed
but the bulb~nosed model of the Br18, The last one that our

govermment bought, I. think, was number 37-19, which belonged
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to our squadron, The 37 means that was the year that we took

it from the contractenm,

When did you start getting in B-17%s?

May of 1941, T think our first flight of Brl7's came in then,

If I'm not mistaken, by then we had hwoken the 5th Group up

into the 5th and 11lth Group, and T think each squadron got

two B~17%, We had three or four B~18%s apiece,

L guess that B-l7 was considered to be a weal miracle weapon

at that time, was it not?

Oh, it was, It was so darn much faster, Tt was the one without
the tatlgunner, but it was anice aiyplane, and the piloets

enjoyed flwying it a lot better, Your range was tremendous
compared to the B-18, It had better engines, Tt was just a
better plane all around,

Awhile ago, you mentiened that when you first went to Hickam Field,
you were liwing at "Tent City," Describe what the quarters

were like in "Tent City." Descrihe one of those tents,

They had wooden floors and a center pole, There must have been a
pole at each cormer and then qutrigging poles to held the

canvas from the center pele, T belieye there were six of us in
each of those tents, Naturally, in military fashion they were in
stratght lines, perfectly straight, and then some distance away
was the bathhoyse or latrine, as they call it today, Then they
had lister bags, which was a canvas bag which you could f£ill with

water, and the sweating of the hags supposedly was a system that
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you clee& the drinking water in there so you wouldn'‘t hawe

to run over to the latrine everyhime you wanted a drink of water,
But those are the same type of tents they used then, and

they used it hefore, At thids time they put prisoners in them

in some states, and they complain ahouf the liwing conditions

of the prisomers. (chuckle),
Approximately how many of those tents would there hawve been
there? You have to estimate this, of coupse, Take a guess,

T would say a hundred, because there was the 17th Air Base Croup,
which we were a part of when we took our hoot or recruit tralning;
then thewre was the 5th Group, which also 1ived in tents because,
like T said, the consolidated barracks was not filled yet; and
then we had the transportation pool, witlch had a few tents of
their own,

So we've talking about a bunch of tents, then,
Belteve me}
How long did beot camp last at that time, or youw recruit
tratning, as it was called?

T think four weeks, That consisted almest exclusiwvely of marching,
and then we did have a trip to the firing range,
You say you had a trip to the firing rapge, Can you be a little
more specific on that?
Well, yen went out and yoeu fired the shotgun~~the ript gun~-the
45-caliber pistol, and, T think, a .30rcaliber watermcooled

machine gun.



Marcello: How about the Springfteld “03 rifle? Did you fire that?

Bruce; No, T never did fire it, Some of them were tssued later on,
but T was on flying status then,

Marcello: So the amount of experience that you had with small arms,
at least in recruit training, was rather minimal,

Bruce; Right, Most of i, T would,,,well, absolutely, It was kept
to g mindmum,

Marcello; Okay, what happened when you got out of boot camp? TIn other words,
what particular spechality did you lean toward?

Bruce} Well, I didn‘t know exactly, and you had no choice, They walked
up and said, "You're on guard duty," T pulled three months and
three weeks of guard duty, and then T went to the 3lst Bombardment
Squadyon, T asked if they had any vacancies, and they had some
openings fn the armament. So I went Intio the armament section,
and from thepe T went on into being an enlisted bombardter,

Marcello; Descrihe the process by which you imitially went Into the
armament section and then eventually became a bombardier, Is
there a close connection between the armament section and being
a bombarditer?

Bruce; T don't think so, really, It was just that T was there in the
hangar where we kept the machine guns for the afrplanes and all,
We also kept what small arms the squadron had, We kept those
up, T could see them at practice with this Norden bombsight
out theve in the hangar they used, Really, it looked pretty

easy to me, T didn't know hew imwolwed it was, so T theought,



"Well, T might as well try for that," and an inquiry came

out, UAnyone interested?" I puyt my name in and was selected

and intemviewed by, at the time, a bunch of high-echelon
officers, T think they were majors and liteutenant colonels,

0f course, there weventt too many colenels then, I was selected,
and I think there were only maybe fifteen ox twenty of us in
that class,

Marcelle: And did you take your bombardiew tralning right there at Hickanm
Field?

Bruce; Right, right at Rickam Field, The practice bombs were dropped
from an airplane which would be from my own squadron, I would
be turned ewver to my section for tvaining, and T was real lucky
there because we had some goed hembardters, and T got a lot of
help which some of the other kids in other squadrons didn't
get,

Marcello: T do know that at that particular time, the services didn't have
too much money with which to operate, How did that affect your
tratning as a bombardier?

Bruce; T don't think that it bothered,,,well, if it did, I didn'‘t know,

T will say this, though, that I used to keep a log of my flying
time, and a let of months T would be high man-~this was before the
war-rand T would have flown, say, thivty-fiwe heurs, Of course,
oyr practice hombs didn‘t cost much because it was an old M-38 A-2,
T think was the designation of it, It was a thin metal thing which

you filled with sand and put a two-and-arhalf-pound black powder



10

charge #n the backend of it, so when you hit anything solid,
yould have the puff of smoke and take a picture, Liwve bombs,
T don't ewver remember dropping them until the war started,
Marcello; How long did you enter bombardier training after you got
to Hickam Field?
Bruce; T would say I got into the bembardier training at the end of
1940, I'd already gone through armament school, and T was up
to PFC, 3vrd elass spectalist, and when they took me into the
bombardier schoel, T made corporal, which was a lot of money.
That was $42 a month plus $21 for flying,
Marcello: How long did the hombardier scheol last?
Bruce; Well, fn theoyy it went on and on until yould qualified at
every altitude, and as T remember, theye weve about five altituydes,
the lowest being 1,000 feet and the highest one at 20,000 er maybe
18,000 feet, I%d qualified at every agltitude except the highest,
Many. of them hadn't, Well, you can loek at it like this: on the
darned old B~18,,,1it's nasty to talk about,but at any altitude
you had to have oxygen, It wasn'‘t pressurized or anything, so you
had a rubber hose connected to oxygen bottles and one wpoden nipple
(chuekle), You'd use the nipple for a while, and then you'd pass
1t to the other bombapdier up there, and he'd use it., So I guess
if there had been four bombardievs up theve getting their practice
runs off, all four of you would haye been using that same old
wooden chewedrup nipple,

Marcello; I'm even suwprised that the B-18's ewven got up that high, T
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didn*t realize they get that high,

I would say a maximum of 18,000, Now T don't remember for

sure,

With what frequeney during your training as a bombardier would

you be geing up and actually dropping those dummy bombs?

I would say it was weekly. We, if I'm npt mistaken, had the

second best record in the Air Force, I've been told, on our practice
runs and bombs and all that out clase, The first was supposed to hawve
been an outfit In Panama, Whether that's se or not, I don't

know, But we did a lot of bomb dropping,

Did you ever do any practice against moving targets such as

ships?

Yes, the U$S Utah, a battleship that had a bunch of wooden planks

on top of it, It had takenoff, and yould bemb it, Tt was sort

of nice to see, You'd hit it, and, boy, that big ol'! splash of
water,.,you'd f£i11 your hembs with water then fnstead of sand,

Alsp, we had some night bombing missions, That was sort of hairy
because there was always some people up there not at the right altitude
they should been at, That, to me, was the only moving legitimate
taprgets, Ewery once in awhile there®d be a Japanese fishing boat
out in your target area, so just fory the hell of it, you'd make

a ryn, drop a bomb on him, Bay, when that practice bomb hit, he

dug right oyt; he didn't stay avound to find out if he was in his

water or your water,

You mentioned awhille age hew much flying time you would get a month,
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and I can't recall what you mentioned, Did you say thirty~fiye
hours?

Bruce; A lot of times, with thirty~five hours, IT'd be first or second
man in the squadron in flying hours, We normally flew with
a full crew, Even though you were going up there and you knew
you weven't going to be in combat, you'd still have a full load
aboard, T guess It was just in case, Of course, there were
some people in flying status who flew four hours a month, and
they'd get theiw pay for that, That would be your line chief
or assistant line chief or something,

Marcello: I assume, fthen, that you were getting flight pay for this kind
of work,

Bryce: Yes,

Marcello:  So your jncome was being supplemented then,

Bruce: As T said, T made $42 g month as a cerporal plus $21 a month
for flying pay, Back then, you got 50 percent of your base pay
for flying,

Marcello: Se you were in "high cotton" compared to some of the other troops,

Bruces Believe me} I helped support my mother, and T always sent here
money ewvery month, which didn't leayve a lot to feol around with,
When I made buck sergeant, the pay was still down, That was
before the “Slave Act! really teok effect, That was $90 plus
$45 dollars for £lying pay, and that was good money then,

Marcello: Now what particuylar act ave you talking about?

Bruce: The "Slave Act," when the Draft Act of 1940 was passed,
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Ts that a nickname that was given to that piece of legislation?
Right, These people, when they came in, they immediately came
across with a pay raise, I don’t remember what it was, but T

do know that as a first lieutenant flying combat overseas, my

best pay, I think, was $166 a month, so they weren't paying us

by the wheelbarwowful,

What kind of work were you doing when you weren't actually
traitning as a bombardier? In other words, would you be going

up in that B-18 and performing other functions in addition

to those of heing a bombardler?

No, Really, like a persen in prison, you had a leot of time to
ktll, Well, T knew one of the propeller men veal well, Don
Kundinger, so T used to go help him, and T could pull and replace
a propeller, T used to work with the engine men just to hawve
something to dp, veally, T might have heen more in the way than

T was good, with the exception of helping Don, Then as bombardters
we didn‘t maintain the bombsights, We took them down to the
Hawaiian Air Depot for the maintenance on them and adjustment.

See, the hombsight,,.to offset the movement of the airplane, it's
just 1like any instrument on the atrplane~~gyroscopically balanced--
but f youw gyroscopefs out of balance, your bombsight's way off,
8o you had tp keep tab of how many hours, and then you'd pull them
for an overhaul just ltke you would an aivplane engine or something,
You mentionad the Norden bombsight, T assume that at that early

stage, it was still considered a supep-secret weapon.
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Bruce; Oh, yes, it was, Before we were taken into the schpol, the
FBI screened oun references, and I know that they came around
to my hometown and asked some people some questions: how leng
had they known me, and had I ewer been in trouble. Fortunately,
They always asked the right peeople, T guess, because things
went all right, |

Marcello:  What kind of security precautiens were taken with that bombsight
once you retuyned to hase?

Bruces: Well, as bomhavrdters, if you want to call uys that, we always
carried a ,45~caltber pistol, I alwaysmanagedto qualify with
it, but, really, that's the hardest thing to shoot with any
acecuracy than any gun I ewer saw, You'd have trouble hitting
the inside of a phone booth from inside, but we would always
carry the 45~caliber pistol, |

The first thing you did was take the bombsight out of the
atrplane and take it to a hembsight wault between the hangars,
and we had an apvound~thee~cleck guawd on it.

Marcello:  Awhile ago, when I was asking you if yeou performed any other
functions in additfon to these of being a bombardter, I was
wondering 1f you perhaps participated in any of the other missitons
that the B~18's would undertake, Far example, were they also
used for long-range weconnaissance and things of that nature?

Bryce; Well, after the war started, yes, we started using them. We
would go oyt,,.Il believe we carried one bomb in one bomd bay

tank, and it seems like to me we went out something 1ike 300 miles
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at an angle and then a hundred-mile leg of a "Y" and then
come back in, Raughly, it was an edght~hour flight,

Marcello; But that sort of thing wasn't done before the war to your
knowledge?

Bruce: No, No, we'd fiy to the ather islands or have a practice of
formation flying, which, unless you had a formation bomb
drop, I weuld de nothing but ride and sweat when the
wingtips got a 1dttle closer together than T theought they
shoyld, But we did a lot ef formatioen flying and group flying
at the time, In the one group, there were four squadrons of us,

Marcello: Tt 1s true, thowgh, s it not, that ome of the functions of
the Atr Corps there on the Hawailan Islands was to provide long-
range reconnabssance for the Nawvy?

Bruce: No, I belleve that it was the other way around,

Marcello; Short~range reconnaissance or what?

Bruce: Maybe short~range, They had what we glways referred to as a
PBY patrol that was supposed to be out and patrol daily, T
have heard and read someplace that December 7 was one of the
days that it did not get out, Another thing, a misconception so
many people have, is that Gemeral Short, the Army man, was the
commander of the whole Hawaiian Tslands, But Kimmel wouldn't,.,
whateyey Short told him went In one ear and out the other, Kimmel
did »t the way he wanted to do it, T have worked for the Nawy
as a civilian, and I have found them to be extremely hard to wopk

with, They're so loaded with tradition and protecting their own
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offtcers that even if theve's spmething obyiously wrong, they‘'re
not going te change t, They had made up their mind that they
knew more ahout what was geing on out theve, Maybe we should
have had them out, but we did not have datly patrols, We would
have had to have been ordeved out, you know, to do that, It
shouldn't have taken any great amount of talent to have found
the Japanese fleet that morning,

What was the food like there at Hickam Fleld?

Oh, not bad, really., We had a mess sergeant,,,well, we had a
numbex of them assigned to each squadron, se a squadron could
pick up en masse and meve, I think they allocated 90¢ a day per
man for rations. They fed you pretty well, Your big meal was
lunch, and that‘s when all the marrded men would come in and eat,
I think it cost them 30¢ for theiw entitre lunch, Once you got
the consolidated mess,..and that consolidated mess was supposed
to have been the first they had opened and tried, They got

some of the kinds ironed out of it, T don‘t think you could
complain about it, and oftentimes it wasn't a legitmate complaint,
When dtd you move &nto the mew barracks?

That would have heen in late 194Q, maybe early 1941,

Describe what they were like on the inside,

Well, they were nice, The center part was yhere your mess hall
was, They were three floors high, O©f couvse, there were no
basements in Hawaldd, There weve six spokes out, and then the

other side, which had no spokes out, is where your serwice came in,
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1ike, supplies for the mess hall and things like that, The

three floors were of lineoleym, and natyrally we kept them waxed,
The light plate switches were brass, and you kept those shined.
We had vepetian blinds, no windows, se sometimes when you'd

get a good wind and a good vain, it'd blow in, On Christmas

of 1940, we had a cold snap~~I had no ldea haw cold it gotrm
nothing real bad, The wind weuld come up, and, boy, it was
miserable dn those bawracks, and these wenetian blinds were
chattering like a bunch of skeletons, anyway, It was horrible
liwing. Then you had séreens, of cqurse, hecause there are
mosquitoes over there~—plenty of them,

Now were you actually liwving in the regular bay as such, or did
you hawve enough rvank by that time that you perhaps got one

of the smaller roems,

No, I always was a little late there, When I made corporal, they
made a bay chief out of me, Well, by then they had staff
sergeants living out there, but they didn't do any of the work,
The corperal had to make out the duty detail and everything, Well,
then they opened up some quarters for noncoms, top three grades,
Well, they moyed out, and T moved on the other side of this spoke,
T was buck sergeant then, and T was a bay chief over there, From
that spoke, T could stand up and leok right oyer inte Pearl Harbor,
and that's how I realized we were under attack after the first
explosion, The second airplane had a big sun on it,

So you were up on the third fleor of this barracks, then?
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Second,

You werve on the second fleor,

Right,

And we have to remember that Hickam was just adjacent to Pearl
Harbor,

Right, a fence between wus,

And from youxr barracks, you did have a goed view of the harbor,
Not a real geod wiew, You cquld see, you kpnow, masts and things
like that, But the secend,,,I would say a torpedo bomber came

tn at an angle~~it looked 1ike to me~~down the channel, and you
got a geod loek at it, They made ne attempt to camouflage t, of
coyrse,

In general, as you look back on life in that Avmy Air Corps before
Pearl Harbop, do you think yeu had made the vight choice? Do

you think you made a good decision to go into the serwice?

I have newer regretted what T have dene or what I've seen, and
I've done a lot of traveling; but there are many other fields

of endeavor if T'd have gotten in that would have paid me way
more money, LM not bragging, but if I'd have stayed in as a ptlot,
I'd had it made, I came back to pilot scheol and went to the

8th Ailr Force and flew a tour oyer thewe as a pilot and had a
chance to stay in operations, which was autematic promotions,

But T always wanted to go to Brazil, and T still did; and when

I got out, I went to school and went down to work for the Brazilian

Air Force for fourteen months,
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Marcello: But in general, you were pretty happy in that Air Force at
that time?

Bruce; Yes, See, a lot of people then weve,,,like T say, we were
fashionable, very fashienable, when it was fashionable to be
poor, There were so many of us who were poor then that it was
no big disgrace, Theve were a heck of a lpt of us who had
started te scheol whe just had to quif because of money
problems. ov.,,now, as I look hack, T wealize that T was not
cut out to be a penologist or a socihal worker, But, like, my
buddy herve, who's a weternartan, he had started to school, and
he ran out of money,too, So when he got out pf the serwice,
he went on back to scheol and findshed his work, You could
always hawve gotten a job, you knew, once the war started, paying
good money if you could have gotten out, That was an impossibility,

1 encourage anyone,,.well, I bellewe that there ought to
be a law that everyone has to serve his country, not particularly
in the military but in some way or fashion, like, the old CCC or
so¢ial work or,,,well, we've just got such a darn good thing going
here that so many people don'‘t realize it,

Therets one thing I would like to point out that so many
people have asked me on the outside and you haven't; 'Did you
realize that Pearl Harbor was going to happen?" It wouldn't take
a damn feool to realize things had to happen if you read the paper,
We were putting the squeeze to them on theilr importing to us and

trydng to export to them at outlandish prices, Plus, I had been
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told by Cectl L, Faulkner, who was a pilot, got killed,,,I was
‘his bomhardier. He told me,,,I talked to him about getting
on one of these crew geing to the Philippines, T figured T
might as well see that part of the world while T could, He
satd, "Well, Jehm, den't worry," He sadd, "You won't eat
Christmas dinnen hewe at Hickam, anyway." Well, you figure
the difference between Christmas and December 7 is not too
many days-~-eighteen, I think,
Evidently, we wepe getting ready to move some more

atrplanes, T know I had already shipped,,,I had a vecord
collection and pictyves, and I'd alveady sent all of that
home, as many people had, Well, we started getting newer
airplanes, which we needed, so if we got them, we also knew that
the Japanese must be getting them, When the war started, it
suddenly occurred to me that the pictures I'd been studying és
a bombardier of what the Japanese had to throw at you were
certainly outdated~-some of these old airplanes with nonretractable
landing gears and all, Really, when the war started, the Zero was
a fine airplanme, If they had been able to keep coming up with
newer models and all, it would have been maybe.,.well, it wouldn't
have been a different steory, but it woyld have taken a lot more
American lives,

Marcello: T was, incidentally, going to ask yoy a questipn along those
1ines, That's getting a little ahead pf our story, and we'll

probably. be coming back and talking about that in a moment,
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fried frog legs was 90¢, Your money went a little farther,
Then, of course, they had all kinds of cathouses there,
The funny part of it was that when we first got that raise
after the "Slave Act," the cathouses down there,,.I think
the price was $3, and you were allowed all of three minutes,
so you hetter have ygur mind made up. Anyway, we got this
pay ralse, and it didn't amount te a heck of a lot, but as
soon as it came through, the cathauses raised their prices,
You can check back, and T believe the name of the newspaper

was the Honolulu Advertiser, and they had an editordal about

what was the matter, Weren't those girls down there patriotic?
(Chuckle) They dropped their prices back to the previeus
price,

0f course, we also played softhall, I played basketball,
We had no foetball, but we could go to Schofield Barracks,
and we saw up theve, shortly before the war, the Uniwversity of
Hawati. play one of the Schofield teams. Some guy who got out
of the "nut" ward ran straight down the field, and he didn't
even have a tattoo on, Boy, TMI1 tell you, that's the most
shocking thing I%we ewver seen in my life-~~just sitting there at
a football game, and here cemes a stark-raving man down, He
circles under the geal post, starts back uwp, jumps on the goal
post, and about that time the MP's grab him,

Marcello: I understand that bexing was a pyetty popular sport at that time,

also,
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Bruce; No, not in the Air Force, not in the Air Force.

Marcello: The boxing smokers were not so numevous or perhaps so
well attended as they were in the other branches then?

Bruce; Well, we didn't even have a bexing team to my knowledge,
Now a kid who went pver with us was one of the best boxers
in his weight class that I ever saw, He didn't have a
high scheel edugcation, and he hoxed for the Army. Some
fellow got him transferred to Wheeler Field, so maybe Wheeler
Fleld had a bexing team, But Waldreon bexed for some team
there, T know he had three fights thewe at Fort Slocum
where T told you we were, He was in the ning less than three
minutes, He knew what he was doing, and he never came back
from Aystvalia, He died just wecently,

Mapcello;  This Waldren?

Bruce; Waldxron, He hag a brother who's falling along the same.,,he
had become an "alkie! down there, T guess, He had a brother
who s the same new, His father had been, which gives a
1ittle credence to this that maybe alcoheplism is a bit inherited
instead of all enwvironmental,

Marcello; On a weekend, eilther on Hickam Field or #n Honolulu, would there
be a lot of drinking and carousing and this sert of thing?

Bruce: Oh, in Honolulu, yes, See, the sailors, up until this pay
scale was equalized, they drew more money, Then, here again, say,
if they had been out to sea fov,say,ninety days, well, they had

some money sayed up, and they coyld come in and really throw a
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"wing-ding," At the time, we were only being paid once a
month, and they were being paid twice a month, Well, anyway,
on that once a month payday, on a weekend, that was a wild,
wild place because eyeryone had money then, ULike they often
satd, "The smart saldier would take his few dellars and go buy
himself a few baga of Bull Duvham, a few hard packs of
cigarettes, shaving blades and shaving soap, and then gamble
the rest, Held try to get a wad so he could go to town, 8o

if he lost it, he had another month to wait,"

You mentioned gambling., How preyalent was gambling at Hickam
Field?

Oh, we always had gambling, Our squadvon tried to keep their
gambling within the squad roem, in the day reom, and as T
remember, they teok a cut of,,,when the pot got so big, they'd
pull a quavter or something like that, and they'd pay for squadron
parthes and things ltike that, By having np outsiders, you
eliminated a lot of possibilittes of cheating and fighting, T
used to play blackjack quite a lot, and T hawven't figured out
yet.,.someone marked the cards, and a buddy ef mine figured out
how to read them (chuckle), He tapped me pff but good; T mean,
he was just smart enpugh that he f£igured put that whoewver had
mavked them, the way he'd marked them, and he could read whether
to hit or stand, When he got the deal, he made a killing.

Were these high stakes games or net?

Not the ones we were in, The old story~-T can't verify this—was
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that up at Schofield Barracks, there were many, many people,,,
that was our biggest installation of manpower until just
before the war, But it'd get down to two oy three people,
and they'd gamble to see whe made it, Tt was the same two

or three,

One of the ways of making meney was the 20 percent for,.,let's
see,,,what was it? Five for four, I%'d give you four dollars now,
and you'd give me five dellars payday--20 pewcent interest.
Legally, that's usury, Today that's a damn good interest rate
(chuckle)}, But there was quite a lot of that going on.

Marcellos: I know there was alsep a place on Hickam Field that's semetimes
referred to as the Snake Ranch, Are you familiar with 1t}

Bryce; Oh, hell, yes,

Mavcelle;  What was the Snake Ranch and descyibe it,

Bruce; Tt was an old woeoden beer hall that T remember,,.well, I remember
they had Miller, Budweiser, and probably Pabst in cans in barrels
of ice, They were two for a quarter, and then they had Primo,
which was made locally over there then and was owned by Schlitz
Brewery later on, was a dime, They had a few snacks, like, dried,
salted shrimp, T think maybe you could get a little package of
crackers and fresh shrimp., Ltke ¥ say, it was just an old
barracks sort of thing, wooden fleor, and you'd sit in there,
and if you wanted a few beers, they'd open after duty hours and
close at gpmething like nine~thirty or ten otclock, See, lights

went out in the barracks at nime~thirty, and you wouldn'‘t even
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ltght a ctgavette after nine-~thirty, Then you got up at
five~thirty, which is a bit ridiculous, because at fiver

thirty all you did was clean up, eat breakfast, police up

your own personal area, and then wait around there until

eight otclock for the duty call, That was the tradition,

so that's the way we did it,

We were talking about your recreatienal actiwvities and so on,
and at one p@int.you'mentiﬁned a record cpllection and a photo
collection?

Yes.

These were hoth pretty big pasttimes for people at that time,
vere they not?

‘Right,

T knew IT've talked a lot of servicemen, and it seems that they
had pheto albums in particular,

Yes.

I'm still amazed when they tell me that they could actually

rent a camera down in Honolulu for your plcture~taking,

Well, T didn't know that, My sister back in Indtana had given
me a camera, is what I did mine with, and, of course, phonograph
records were 78 ppm, They were 35¢ for Decca and Bluebird and 50¢
for Columbia and RCA, So it depended on what artists you wanted
to heaw, what you paid for your pecords, But after they got a
1ittle modstyre and all, they warped and all, and everytime T'd

break one, it'd hreak my heart a little, so T gave the whole



Mapcello:

Bruce:

Marcellos

Bruce:

Marcelles

Bruce:

27

collection away,

So did you er did you net send vecprds home? T think awhile
ago yoy mentioned that you had sent a3 bunch of your records
home,

Yes, T had a little wecord player which wpuld sit in the bottem
of my wall lockew, and then I had, oh, T wouyld say, maybe
twenty recovds, Then I play it and get a few too many, and T*d
get 3 box from one of the wecerd companites, Parcel post didntt
cost too much, and LM just ship them on home,

What was your favorite muysic?

1 think Jimmy Dorsey was my faverite band at the time, I, of
coyrse, liked Glemn Miller and Tommy Dersey, also., I never

had cared for hillhilly music, and it hadn't made the big
comeback that it has today,

Now. as one gets closer and closer to December 7, 1941, and as
conditions between the two countries centinued to worsen, what
changes, 1f any, could you detect in your training routine

or in the general routine there at Hickam Field?

Well, the genmeral thing I could see was-~it looked 1like to mer~
that they were trying to put you into a crew situation, where
the same group would fly together all the time instead of you
going put to an alrplane, where you'd never seen the pilot or
the copilot before, on you'd never flown with them beforer-you
know, such things, T do believe we started flying a little

more, T'm not sure of that, But any big, big things, I wouldn't
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say I'd noticed,

Marcello; Did the base perhaps seem to he mpre obsessed more than usual
with the possibility of sabotage being committed? In other
words, the islands, as we knpow, had quite a few people of
Japanese descent, and I think most authorities considered
them a possible threat as saboteurs, So were any precautions
taken to protect the planes and things of that nature in those
days leadipg up o the attack?

Bruces No, We had had what we called the guard detail,,.,,I told you before
we had ouvy bombsight mault there, We had that, Then we had a
guard detail that was picked sort of at random, a roster sort of
deal, and then you'd walk around the airplanes, You'd get that
ever so often, The airplanes, natupally, were parked in fairly
close to the hangars, and it wasan't too much trouble that,.,T
guess one guy was gsupposed to keep up a patrol around six
airplanes. You had an officer~efmthermguard and a sergeantrof~the~
guard,

Marcello: Was it standard operating procedure to line the planes up there
in a nice, neat rows?

Bruce: Oh, yes. Well, really, it's the only sensible way 2f you are limited
for space, Now another thing that I read in this hook recently--
that was wrong-rwas that all the afrplanes were clustered right
there together, Now we had airplanes acvoss the runway at Hickam
after they had hit on the 7th, T don‘t know whether it was

negligence that we had not pulled them back across the way or



Marcello;

Bruyce:

Marcello:

Bruce:

Marcello;

Bruces

29

or what, but there were airplanes across the runway, We did

not have revetments to put them in,

T guess that it was much easter to fyel those planes, too, was

it not, when they were lined up in rows,

Well, we didn‘t have central point fueling, That was all just
like servicing an automobile, You'd get yp on the wing and

put it in the top of the wing and put the cap back on, If you had
a lot of aiwplanes to service, that would be more sensible, Now at
Wegver Field, they had them clustered in clusters of three, I
understand, Wingtip to wingtip woyld be twe fighters and then
one towed in with the tail sort of up by the ceckpits, so that
was a nice, pretty thing, I guess, for the Japs to see,

By this time, had most of the B~18's heen replaced by the B-17's?
Oh, no, At the time of the attack, we had one B-17, 1 believe,

We had stapted sending,,.they took the l4th Bombardment Squadron
from the 11lth Group, Every squadron on the base gave them a few
matntenance people plus one airplane and crew to go over, and that
was the backbone of the 18th Bomb Group that you've heard so much
about, It started out as the 1l4th Provisional Group, We might
have had five B-18's at the time, byt we did not have many B~17's,
At that time, that &s, prier te December 7, when you thought of

a typieal Japanese, what kind of person did you conjure up in
your own mind? Again, I'm taking about that pertod prior to the
attack,

T would say he was a small person with glasses, I wasn'‘t at the
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time racitally consctous of the fact,,,well, it's obwtous that
they‘re yellow, but it didn‘t bother me, T did know that
they were small, T had never, for some strange reason, giwen
it much thought abeut their capabilities as pilots and all,
I'd read an old, old article by Dawvenport, & think, in the

Post or Colller‘s, 'Impregnable Pearl Harbor," which was one

of the most misleading articles ever written, T think, Then
we had all read, T'%m sure, that the Japanese had infetrior
eyesightmmie why they wore glasses, I don't think we ever
figured it out that It was because they examined thelr eyes
more thoroughly than they did here in the States, is why more
of them wore glasses,

Now as relatiens between the two countries continued to worsen,
did you and yeur buddies, when you got around in bull sessions,
ever talk about the possibility of the Japanese hitting Pearl
Harbor, or hitting the Hawaiian fslands, T guess T should say,
Did that ever come up?

No, it seemed like to me we were always the attackers, I never
will forget, when I went through armament scheel, a fellow

by the name of Icenogle, He was an iInstructor, He was talking...
teaching some phase of armament training, He saild if the
Japanese ever gave us any real trouble, all we would have to do
is to load all these B~18's with bombs, and we could bomb those
islands into obliwion, Well, T waited until I got home

and got to the library or something, and it didn't take much
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gumption to figure out there was np@ way in Christts world

you could reach there with a B-18 and that the Japanese
tslands were pretty big, But I didn't make a big point

of it, althouygh I did see then that logistically we were

a long way apart,

Okay, this takes us into that weekend of December 7, 1941,

and T guess we need to go into this period in a great more
detatl, Let me ask you this, I should have asked you this
awvhile ago; did they occur with more frequency than perhaps
they had formerly?

I don't, to my knowledge, remember ap alert, Now, you know,
1iving on the base, not having to go through or in and out of
the gate, I could have missed it, But the fact of living

in the barracks right there close to the flight line, there was
no preblem having men on alert hecause you were right there

at thelr beck and call, Now T can't think of any alerts we
ever had, npt even a weather alert, really.

So from what you satd there, T gather it was more or less a
routine procedure right up to the attack itself,

Well, np, Alerts or maneuvers or whateyer you want to call it,
we had been op one, We went off of i%,,,oh, I don't even
remember when the first one was, But we had been on another one
up until December 6, See, oyr work wveek was five days of work,
and then ewery Saturday morning yoy would have a personnel

inspection, a parade, and then 'd work for a couple of hours
? ’ you
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until noon, and then you were off for a day-and-a-half,
Well, this particular Saturday, December 6, we'd
been on the alert that week, I guess that s what you'd
call an alert, Teo my knowledge, you couldn't get off the
base, but I hadn't tried, We had our regular inspection
and everything else, and then they said, "“Well, you can go
to town," That was on December 6, and I guess maybe the
week or maybe even two weeks before you hadn't been able to,
which was no problem, So "Scrappy" O'Brien and I went into
town Saturday night, December 6,

Marcello: What took place during that alert that was called off that
Saturday morning? How did that alert affect you?

Bryce} T believe we did some more of the same training flights that
wve'd done beforem~with the practice hombs-~and we also, you
know, would practice air-tomatr gunnery, Another bomber would
tow a sleeve which youtd shoot at, The artillery would have
a bomher tow a sleewve across there and shoot at it,

Marcello: Okay, you mentioned that when the alert was called off, you and
a buddy went into town that Saturday, What did you do in town?

Bruce: Oh, T knew a girl, and her family was in from the big island,
so we met; whth them and had a few drinks and dinner, Then
we went back to the base, We were going to see them later
on, but we got in, I'd say, roughly at midnight or something,

Mapcello; Were you im pretty good shape when you were back aboard base?

Bruce: You mean drunk alcohol-wise?
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Yes, What kind of shape were you in?

Oh, all right, pretty good shape, We'd had, like T say, a few
drinks, but we were not on our hands apd knees or anything like
that, "Serappy" never was toe much of a drinker, anyway,

How difficult or easy‘was-it to get an overnight pass and stay

in Honolulu, let%s say, on a Saturday night}

It wasn’t hard once you had,,.I think it was three months, You
could get a Class A pass, which you could come and go at will.
There was. just one of those things--it was all right until you
abused it, and then they made you sorry about it, A number of

the fellpws had what was called "shack rats" in town who they*'d
live with, Yet for seme strange reaspn,.,well, not strange
either, because, say, in an alémt like you just mentioned,

they'd have to maintain a bunk and their space out in the barracks;
so here they'd come trudging in about six o'elock or six-thirty or
seven o'clock in the morning and sweep up and knock the dust off
thedr shoes and tighten up their blankets, and they'd be ready

for another day,

And these women were called "shack rats?"

Shack rats,

On a weekend, and you would have to estimate this, what percentage
of personnel might be on the base? Or would there be a constant
movement, on and off, and you couldn't really tell how many were

on the base?

I would say roughly 75 to 90 percent would be on the base, Now,
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see, a lot of times we could get what taday would be

called a Special Services bus, and we had a real rough beach
named Nanakuli, which is offrlimits now because it's so

rough, But we used to get one of those busses, and the
motorpool, if someone had a license, they'd let him drive it,

and the mess hall would fix you a lunch, and you'd go there for
the day, Of course, you couldntt take any beer or anything

on a G wehicle, but yeu'd go out there and swim or go to

some of the other places, Special Serwices would have maybe

a tour to the Palit that'd take maybe three or four hours, Then
you'd come back, There just wasn't,,,mosti of the people didn't
have anyplace to go eon the weekend, really,

Okay, let%s talk about that morning of December 7, 1941, Did
you have to get up at a particular time on a Sunday morning,

or could yeu stay in the sack if you wanted to?

You could stay in the sack, Like I say, "Scrappy" and I had
been out, and T heard this first airplane,,,I've always been
pretty much of a light sleeper, and I looked at my watch, T
figured then, "Well, heck, I'll just stay here and sleep instead
of getting up and going on down to the mess hall for breakfast."
I said to myself, "There's that damm crazy Navy up there flying}"
What made you think it was the Navy?

Well, because that silly bunch of bastards, you never knew when
they were going to be airborne or what they were going to do, and

here it was, Sunday morning, and I knew none of us would have
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taken off; and you could tell it was a singlerengine airplanme,

for another thing, And Wheeler Field, their alrplanes seldom

ever came down te our place,

About what time was this when you glanced at your watch?

Let's see, it started at seyen fifty~five, so this must have

been roughly at seven forty~fiwe because I think the mess

hall clesed at eight o‘cleck, T figured, f T hustled, I could

get down there for chow,

Okay, so ygu hear these airplanes, and you logk at your watch,

and the time‘s abput seven forty-five, Pick up the story from

that point,

All right, Then T hear this airplane dive, and T figure, "Well,

hets making a practice dive at the harbor,"

And this was. common for the Navy to do this,

Yes, to make these diwes, You know, an alrplane has got its

own sound~~the propellers changing pitch and everything,
Anyway, he came down, and then T hear this explosion, I

satd to myself, "Boy, there's one of them that didn't make it

out!" T got up, and I just walked across, See, there was one

row of bunks between me and the screen, T looked over there,

and then here comes a second one in, and I saw the rising sun

on it, Se T hollewed, "We're under attack} Get up}" or

something, T wish T could think pof something heroic to say,

but T can't, But T did holler,

What was the veaction of the rest of the people in the bay?
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Well, they sort of didn't beliewe it either: "What are

you talking about?" Then you could see pver there, you

know, the smoke starting to billepw up alveady, and they

were ahout as much shocked,,.and actually, we just sort

of milled around and,,.well, I put on fatigues, regular

fatigue uniform, hecause that was the easiest thing to get

into, I checked on "Scrappy” O'Brien; he lived on the other
side, Don Kinsell, my other close buddy, was in the

hospital having his tonsils taken out, They made a corpsman

out of him, then, when the injurved started ceming in. So we
fooled around, went down to the first flopr, and the guy who
had been in charge of quarters was a fellow by the name of

Jack Fox, Well, then they were strafing and bombing at will
anything and eyerything, And pl' Jack said to me, "Well, John.,."
It's sort of unusual to call people in the old military by

thetr first name, He said, Well, John, do you think they'll
finally declare war now?" T said, '"Well, T suppose so,"” T
didn't hear until later that he had stepped outside the barracks,
and a fragmentation bomb took off his head, because I went back
through the bavracks and went on over to flight line,

About how much time had elapsed from the time you initially

saw the first Japanese plane until you got ower to the flight
1ine?

T would say thinty to forty~five minuytes,

That much time elapsed?



Bruce;
Marcello:
Bruce;

Marcello:

Bruce;

Mancellos:

Bruyce;

Marcello:

Bruce;

37

Yes,

What were you doing in the meantime? Simply milling around?
Right, Like headless sheep, I guess (chuckle},

Were you waiting for orders or Instryctions? Was there confusion?
Chaos?

Well, you had nothing to do anything with, This shows how smart
I am, T had the gas mask and a helmet tssued to me, which I
sure wished I had with me, but I'd left that locked up over in
the bombsight roem, and T couldn‘t get in there, I didn‘t

have the key, Well, if they'd gassed that last time, they'd hawe
wiped out the tslands because most people had put the gas mask
someplace and didn“t know where in the heck it was,

In the meantime, are you watching what ds taking place, or are
you Inside and just heaving things?

Yoy're watching, See, the wings come out like this (gesture),
and you could stand out here (gesture), and over here was Pearl
Harbor, and then back over here (gestuve) the flight line, and
every once in awhile, here'd come an afrplane across strafing
the parade ground, The barracks were hit a number of times,
See, one hit pight in the mess hall, When the one hit in the
mess. hall, T was already over at the flight Iline,

Describe what you saw occurring out on the flight line when you
were still in the barracks,

Well, I didn't see anything, really, because we were at the

north end of the barracks, and on the flight line.,,from where
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ve were, all we could see was the control tower,

That first B-~17 that was flying in from the States was
hit on the ground, The Japs drepped-~it looked like--an
incendiary bomb right in the radio compavtment, That's the
one that is always showed sitting burned, T never saw that
happen, but it was there,

Marcello: From what dirvection were those Japanese planes coming? Do
you know?

Bruce: The first one 1 saw seemed to come from sort of up the Pear]
Harbor channel from the Honolulu end, in that way, instead of
coming over the mountains and drop in which, it seemed like,
would have been more or less logical,

Marcelle:  How low were these planes flying?

Bruce: Oh, gosh darn, for a torpedo plane, that one that T recognized,
T would estimate it must hawve been not ower 500 feet, maybe
down to as low as 250 feet, We were right close to the Pearl
Harbor channel there, and the channel opened up right tnto
Pearl Harhor,

Marcello: Now was the attack still going pn when you went from the barracks
over to the flight line?

Bruce: Yes,

Marcello: Describe ypur journey from the barracks to the flight line,

Bryce; Well, we went through the barracks as far as we could, Then
when we got out there, we ran over to the hangars, We were

in the second,..the hangars were,..there were eight of them, in
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pairs, and we were fn the second pair, So we ran over there,
and on the way over, I recoginized a kid who was a "pencil
pusher" in a different outfit, and a concussion must have
gotten him because his hair was just as perfectly parted back
here (gesture}-rhe was lying on his face~-and not a bit of
blood,

Someone was with me, and I can't remember who now, It
might have been O'Brien, We went on over to the hangar then
and went to the bambsight room, Well, naturally, it was still
closed, We didn't have any bombsights; we didn't even know
if we had any airplanes to go,

Your reaction was, I suppese, to twy and get those airplanes

in the atr, That's why you went over theve,

Right, Tt was seme more milling around, veally, and as I
mentioned, this fellow's name, Cecil Faulkner, before...we were
in the operations side~~that was toward the landing strip-~and
some Zeros, I guess they were, came down through there, He
made the comment, "With a P-36 you could shoot them all down;"
But there we were, and still not knowing what was going on,

T had ne idea how long that first attack lasted, but they
had everything their own way. There was absolutely no opposition,
other than mayhe here or there was a ground-operated machine gun.
I think the Nayy finally started getting off some good ammunttion,
but part of it fell cut of the city of Honolulu,

What was the fate of your airplane?
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See, we didn't have an airplane, There were more crews than there
were airplanes, Number 3917, the airplane we flew, was across the
way, so it wasn't hurt at all, Waldron was a captain then, and
he eventually retired as a two-star general, He went as pilot,

Hal Breck, who's also here, was a capilot, ___ , who

has since died,was the radio operator, I-was a bombardier, The
navigator, who got killed, was General Tinker.

We went out and flew in the area, I'm sure, they told us to
fly in, By then, clouds had lowered because T think we were in
the same area they werer~maybe not out far encugh, We never
spotted anything because, if we had, T wouldn't be here talking
to you, I never will forget, though,,,this isn't heroism, but we
were at 2,000 feet looking for them, and Waldron came down, and
he said, "“John, if we find them, we'll drop down to 1,800 feet
to bomh, Set up ewverything for 130 miles per hour, and then we'll
try to get back up in the clouds," So that shows the speed and
all that we were trying to operate at then,

Could you detect a first wave and a second wave or a first attack
and a second attack?

Oh, certainly, The second attack, I would say, was more or less
precision bombing hecause they were up high and came along. They
bent-r~and tt's still bent~-the door on the bombsight room, We
didn't even know enough--this shows our preparedness--to keep
windows open and deors open, We closed them, Well, hell, the

concussion bent that door,
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And it was the same way when we got shot down at Midway,
At the time we were still new enough at this business that
they hadn‘t taught us to put your back where you're going to
get the impact, and that‘s how I broke a wertabrae in my back,
I sat around hack there #n the radio room when we hit the “drink,"
and we were lucky tp do as well as we did, But if we'd been
better instructed, or if anyone had known-emight have been a better
term-~it would have beena lot better,

Marcelleo; All this time, T assume that nobody was really giving any
orders, Nobedy was taking charge,

Bruce; Not to my knowledge, They came out, and it was just a volunteer
crew that went up on that first one,

Marcello: What kind of armament did that bomber have when you finally
took off?

Bruce; Well, we had a kid from the 72nd, and his last name was Mills,

He had on ,30~caliber up in front of the bombardier, and I think
there was one ,30~caliber in each waist window, That was the size
of 1t,

Marcello:; You had no bombs?

Bruce: Oh, ves, we had,,,was it two or four 500~pound bombs? They would
have been nice to drop in the middle of a carrier. But the B-18
was getting pretty old,and it didn't carry much,

Marcello: When did that plane get into the air?

Bruce: T can't tell youn that, T would say, roughly, '"noonish,"

Marcello: So it was quite a long time after the attack was actually ower then.,,
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several hours after the attack was over?

Yes., A couple of B~17%'s had tried to take off, One of them
trted to taxi out, and theve was a chock there, and he ate
enough power to finally tip over and grind the edges of the
propellers off, so that took care of that pne, That wasn't

our squadron, by the way,

Speaking of B~17% do you pecall that flight of B-17's coming

in from the States?

Yes.

Describe what you saw from their activity,

Well, see, I'd never seen a B~17E before, That's the one with
the big tail, They were coming over Kamehameha, the fort, right
there, You'd circle over Kamehameha and come into Hickam, The
poer al' artillery hoys had never seen them, either, so, hell,
they were just cutting loose on them, They were shooting at them,
so they had a rough row to hoe, T think it was a mixed flight-~
B-17E's, some C's maybe, and D's,

Do you remember the Japanese planes swooping down on these B~17's?
No, I don‘t, Really, T don‘t think that many came in that day.
T don't know of a number, really, One landed and then off the
runway of it at Bellows Field, I know, and one landed someplace
else,

When did you come back in that evening?

Oh, I would say four~thirty maybe,

So you were out several hours, then, looking for the Japanese?
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Right,

Were many other planes with your plane?

No,

That always reminds me of a dog chasing an eighteen-wheel
truck, What are you going te do if you catch 1t?
That's exactly what it weuld have been like, If we'd have
found anything,T wouldn't be here,

What did you do that eyening when you came baek?

T looked for someplace to eat, See, the mess hall was damaged,
and T saw a place there that had a field kitchen set up, I had
a mess kit,,,they had also issued us mess kits someplace, T guess
it was. when we get the gas mask, In going through the line,
this guy safd, "What outfit are ypu in?" T said, "Well, what
outfit are you feeding?" He said, "The 72nd." So T said, "That's
the one I'm tn) (Chuckle} T never will forget-~they had ham!
How would you describe the emotions that you had through this
whole attack?

Surprise,

How about fear?

T would describe myself as a born cowayd, really, but at the
same time, T'm afrald to let the fear overcome me, Like many
times in the 8th Aix Force, I'd say, '"Once I get this bomber on
the ground, I'm going to tell them they can jam it! I'm finished
flying!! Then Y get to think, '"Well, no, that's not the

thing to do, Everyone else is flying,"
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Could you hear very much shooting that night?
Oh, yes, anything that moyed, There was some poor Navy
atrplane that came up through the channel (chuckle}, and

I think every hoat that was still afloat cut loose,

Did yoy see that?

Yes, it was a pretty display,

What did yoy do the days immedtately following the attack?
A few days later, we moved to Waimanalo, They broke up into

B~17's. and B~18's, So T went to Waimanalo, T was a juntor
bombardiewy on the field, so naturally T got them lovely ol' B~18'‘s
instead of the B~17's,

I've newer heard of Waimanalo,

Bellows Fileld,

Oh, yeu'd be over at Bellows Field,

Yes, the city was Waimanalo, We had just a crash runway there,
1'd assume that in the meantime you were probably trying to
cannibalize a lot of parts to put a few airplanes together,
were you not?

Right, They did that, and I thought that, considering the
training of most of them, they did an outstanding job.,

When did you finally leaye the Hawaian Islands?

It was toward the end of 1942 when I came back to flying school,
See, I was iIn the 72nd, and they were getting ready to go on

down to the Solomons and New Guinea,

Avhile ago yoy mentioned that you participated in the Battle of
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Midway, and T assume that you were flying out of Hawail?

Yes, We went over from Bellews Field to Midway and gassed

up and went out on attack,

What kind of plane were you flying then?

B-17's,

Well, Mr, Bruce, that's prohably a good place to end this
interview, In one sense, it always leaves me a little frustrated
because yqu guys have so many expertences after Pearl Harbor,
and T feel like T pught to get those, top, But this project
1s concerned only with Pearl Harbor, T want to thank you wery
much for having participating, You've said a lot of wery
interesting and important things,

Well, thanks, Ron, and I'1l see you around,



